
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 1 


 
 
 


 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
Meeting Date: August 6, 2020 


 
(*In order discussed) 


 
August 6, 2020 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Larry Spillane 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 
      Lloyd Guccione 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:32 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
The GM noted that correspondence received on from Lloyd Guccione had not been added to the 
Agenda.  Discussion ensued.  It was decided to address this correspondence with Item III (Consent 
Calendar) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
President Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  The GM read correspondence 
from Customer Lloyd Guccione into the record.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve the 
Consent Calendar.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The following items were 
approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 2, 2020 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence:  
  (1)  Email received from Lloyd Guccione. 







 2 


 
 


 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.) 


(None.)  
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:38 p.m.) * 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:38 p.m.)  Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-20, Approving FY 


2020-21 Flat Charges.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  
At 6:48 p.m. President Holmer opened the Public Hearing.  There were no comments.  At 
6:48 p.m., President Holmer closed the Public Hearing.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve Resolution 20-20 as amended to read “Overruling Protests and Confirming 
Report on Annual Flat Charge at the Same Level of $198/connection As In Recent Years 
for Sweetwater Springs Water District.”  Director Lipinski seconded.  Discussion ensued.  
Director Robb-Wilder amended her motion to be to approve Resolution 20-20 as 
amended to read “Overruling Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge of 
$198/Connection for Sweetwater Springs Water District.”  Director Lipinski seconded.  
Discussion ensued.  Motion carried 4-1, with Director Schaap voting against. 


 
V-B. (6:55 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re 17448 River Lane property sale update.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 
V-C. (6:59 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2019-20 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


(Operations and Capital) Report thru June 30, 2020.  The GM provided an overview of 
this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 
V-D. (7:14 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re CIP 2021 Update.  The GM provided an overview of 


this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 
V-E. (7:21 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Local Hazard Mitigation Plan update.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 
V-F. (7:30 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Emergency Response Plan – COVID 19 update.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued. 
Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve updates for the Emergency Response Plan for 
COVID-19 and revisit updates as needed.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 5-
0.   


 
V-G. (7:48 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 20-19, Establishing a Procedure for 


the Imposition of Liens and Collection by Property Tax Roll.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel 
Rachel Hundley.  Further discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Lloyd Guccione.  
Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt Resolution 20-19, Establishing 
a Procedure for the Imposition of Liens and Collection by Property Tax Roll, with the 
caveat that his procedure be added to the District’s Policies & Procedures Manual.  
Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder withdrew her motion and moved to adopt 
Resolution 20-19, Establishing a Procedure for the Imposition of Liens and Collection by 
Property Tax Roll.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  Direction was given 
to staff to bring back a resolution or ordinance to add the lien procedure to the Policies & 
Procedures manual. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:074 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 







 3 


1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. In-House Construction Projects 
6. Labor Negotiations 
7. Lower Russian River Community Action Governance  
8. Lower Harrison Tank Site Retainer Wall Update 
9. Grant(s) Update 
10. Personal Protective Equipment 
11. Guernewood Park 
12. Gantt Chart 
13. Economic Impact of No Disconnects for Non-payment 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Discussion ensued.  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:47 p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder reminded the Board of the upcoming Board candidacy deadlines. 
 
 


VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:49 p.m.) 
 
1. Tax lien policy 
2. Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 


 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:51 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
APPROVED:  
 
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Rich Holmer        
Larry Spillane        





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:32 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:37 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:38 p.m.) *

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:074 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:47 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


September 3, 2020 Regular Meeting 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 


Meeting link: 
https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?M


TID=m3f9429c486e0953885625762b46f7c09 
Meeting number: 126 566 0487 


Password: vkGPShMb736 
 


OR 
 


Join by phone: +1-415-655-0001 US Toll 
Access code: 126 566 0487 


Password: 85477462 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to 
everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of the 
need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager or 
Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on the 
agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are on 
file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda unless the Board President allows additional time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 
 



https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?MTID=m3f9429c486e0953885625762b46f7c09

https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?MTID=m3f9429c486e0953885625762b46f7c09

https://sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my.webex.com/sweetwaterspringswaterdistrict.my/j.php?MTID=m3f9429c486e0953885625762b46f7c09





 2 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 6, 2020 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Emergency Response Plan – Wildfire and Power Outages 


Discussion (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re CIP 2021 update. (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Local Hazard Mitigation Plan update/timeline (Est time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Development update (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Grant Opportunities Update (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Tax Lien Policy (Est. time. 10 min.) 
 
G. Discussion/Action re Offer for Mt. Jackson Cell Site Lease (Est. time 10 min.) 
 


 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  
 
VIII. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 
 
IX. CLOSED SESSION  
 







 3 


A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 
subdivision (d)(2) of Section 54956.9 based on communication with workers’ 
compensation legal counsel (one potential case) 


ADJOURN 







 4 


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


• Guerneville 
• Rio Nido 
• Guernewood Park 
• Villa Grande 
• Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 3, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Emergency Response Plan; Wildfire Response
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report related to the Emergency Response 
Plan and the Walbridge Wildfire. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
Several weeks ago, I began working with staff to update the Wildfire section of the 
Emergency Response Plan going into Wildfire season.  Most of the updates have been 
completed.  Unfortunately, the Walbridge and Meyers wildfires started August 18th 
and Mandatory Evacuations were issued Wednesday evening for most of our service 
area.  Office staff was evacuated and communications established with Julie.  Jack 
and I coordinated the District response.  All field staff was instructed to get their 
families safely evacuated, then report for emergency duty.  Jack has done a great 
job rotating his group as two on-call units to maintain the system, keep tanks full, 
coordinate with local Sheriff and Fire personnel, and respond to line breaks and 
communications failures.  I have taken the responsibility of coordinating as liaison to 
County Emergency Operation Center (EOC), updating staff and the Board, and 
virtually attending all County Supervisor, Sheriff, Cal Fire, and EOC meetings.  I have 
kept the EOC informed of our District status, Mt. Jackson threats and concerns, and 
evacuation orders.  Fortunately, the weather has benefitted the firefight and most 
folks have been allowed re-entry.  My home and Rio Nido are the most threated at 
this time.  Hopefully, full re-entry and fire control will be achieved before our Board 
meeting on September 3rd.  I will bring the updated Emergency Response Plan for 
board review and approval at the October Board meeting.  The fact that we had been 
reviewing the document was of great help during the event. 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: September 3, 2020






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 3, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2020-2021 CIP Status Update
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive status report for FY 2020-2021 CIP. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the August Board Meeting, the Board received an update on the FY 2020-2021 
CIP.  The project includes ~5,600 linear feet of 6” HDPE water main replacement 
along Old River Rd and Woodland Drive.  The existing water mains consist of 4” and 
6” galvanized pipe and has 20-25 lead goosenecks connected to the service lines.  
These lead materials are required to be removed as soon as possible by the State 
Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB).  Sweetwater Springs Water District 
included this lead material removal in a plan submitted to the SWRCB.  The removal 
of these lead materials will complete removal of all known lead materials in both the 
Guerneville and Monte Rio systems.  Also, the galvanized lines have had numerous 
leaks and failures over the years and represent a bottleneck in the Guerneville system 
between earlier Capital upgrade projects.  The grant funding for this project was 
based, in part, on replacing these substandard materials.  
 
After the August Board meeting, the Board asked for a detailed timeline for 
completion of the design and planning components of the project.  I asked John 
Wanger and Steve Van Saun, from Coastland for this timeline.  The timeline is 
attached to this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 







ID Task Name Duration Start Finish


1 Notice to Proceed 1 day Tue 7/7/20 Tue 7/7/20


2 Meetings With District 133 days Wed 7/8/20 Fri 1/8/21


3 Kickoff Meeting 1 wk Wed 7/8/20 Tue 7/14/20


4 50% Review Meeting 1 day Wed 10/21/20 Wed 10/21/20


5 90% Review Meeting 1 day Thu 12/3/20 Thu 12/3/20


6 Final Review Meeting 1 day Fri 1/8/21 Fri 1/8/21


7 Background Research & Field Review 65 days Wed 7/8/20 Tue 10/6/20


8 Background Information 6 wks Wed 7/8/20 Tue 8/18/20


9 Field Review 4 wks Wed 9/9/20 Tue 10/6/20


10 Coordinate with Agencies 96 days Wed 7/8/20 Wed 11/18/20


11 County/SCWA 4 wks Thu 10/22/20 Wed 11/18/20


12 Water Board 4 wks Thu 10/22/20 Wed 11/18/20


13 Utility Companies 4 wks Wed 7/8/20 Tue 8/4/20


14 Topographic Survey 25 days Wed 7/8/20 Tue 8/11/20


15 Field Survey  5 wks Wed 7/8/20 Tue 8/11/20


16 Environmental 80 days Thu 7/30/20 Wed 11/18/20


17 CEQA/NEPA 16 wks Thu 7/30/20 Wed 11/18/20


18 50% Submittal 50 days Wed 8/12/20 Tue 10/20/20


19 Prepare 50% Submittal 8 wks Wed 8/12/20 Tue 10/6/20


20 District Review ‐ 50% Submittal 2 wks Wed 10/7/20 Tue 10/20/20


21 90% Submittal 30 days Thu 10/22/20 Wed 12/2/20


22 Prepare 90% Submittal 4 wks Thu 10/22/20 Wed 11/18/20


23 District Review ‐ 90% Submittal 2 wks Thu 11/19/20 Wed 12/2/20


24 Final Submittal 30 days Fri 12/4/20 Thu 1/14/21


25 Final Submittal (Screen Check) 3 wks Fri 12/4/20 Thu 12/24/20


26 District Review 2 wks Fri 12/25/20 Thu 1/7/21


27 Final Bid Documents 1 wk Fri 1/8/21 Thu 1/14/21


Meetings With District


Background Research & Field Review


Coordinate with Agencies


Topographic Survey


Environmental


50% Submittal


90% Submittal


Final Submittal


5 10 15 20 25 30 4 9 14 19 24 29 3 8 13 18 23 28 3 8 13 18 23 28 2 7 12 17 22 27 2 7 12 17 22 27 1 6 11 16 21 26 31 5 10
y 2020 August 2020 September 2020 October 2020 November 2020 December 2020 January 2021 February 202


Sweeetwater Springs Water District
2021 CIP
Design Schedule


Thu 8/27/20 







July Aug. Sept. Oct.  Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb.
Task
Meetings with District 1,420.00$      1,420.00$      1,420.00$        1,420.00$       
Background Information 240.00$         1,668.00$      2,862.00$     
Coordinate with Agencies 1,240.00$      3,680.00$      4,920.00$       
Topographical Survey 21,965.00$    14,647.00$   
Environmental 120.00$         1,258.10$      2,756.20$      11,024.80$    12,401.90$     
50% PS&E 3,360.00$      15,680.00$    3,360.00$     
90% PS&E 876.75$         16,658.25$     
Final PS&E 12,375.00$     
Bid Support TBD TBD
Direct Costs 592.33$         592.33$           592.33$          
Monthly Expenditure 23,565.00$    22,353.10$    21,298.20$    20,953.88$    34,572.48$      14,387.33$      1,420.00$        ‐$                 
Cumulative Expenditure 23,565.00$    45,918.10$    67,216.30$    88,170.18$    122,742.67$   137,130.00$   138,550.00$   138,550.00$  


2020 2021


Sweetwater Springs Water District
2021 CIP


Anticipated Monthly Expenditure





		Item V-B - FY 2020-2021 CIP Status Update

		Meeting Date: September 3, 2020



		Item V-B.1 - FY 2020 - 2021 CIP Design Schedule

		Item V-B.2 - FY 2020 - 2021 CIP Expense Timeline






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 3, 2020  
 
SUBJECT: Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report from the General Manager.  Update of 
the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $30,074 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the August 6th Board meeting, the Board approved Harris and Associates 
to undertake and complete a Local Hazard Mitigation  (LHMP) to help the 
District qualify for FEMA grants.  The timeline for the work completion is April 
2021.  The report and recommendations will tentatively be presented to the 
Board at the May 2021 meeting for discussion.  A contract for the LHMP 
project has been executed.  Jack Bushgen, Julie Kenny and I planned to 
participate in the first Planning Committee meeting on August 27th.  That 
meeting has been rescheduled to September 4th due to the wildfires and 
evacuations.  A more detailed timeline of the project is attached.   
 
 
 







HARRIS AND ASSOCIATES 
LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 


PROJECT SCHEDULE 


Months Key Tasks Meetings & Workshops Key Milestones/ 
Deliverable 


July  
2020 


-Pre-Meeting with Project Manager 
-Existing Document Review 
-Identify Required Participants 
-Invite Plan Participants 
-Establish Planning Committee 
-Document the Planning Process 
-Identify and Review District Assets 
 


 
 
 
Pre-Meeting 
 


 
 
Fully Executed 
Professional 
Services 
Agreement 


 
August 


2020 


 
Assess and Select Hazards of Concern 


 
 


 
Draft Element A: 
Planning Process 


 
September 


2020 


 
Conduct Risk Assessment for Selected 
Hazards 


 
Planning Committee 
Meeting #1: Kickoff and 
Select Hazards of 
Concern (September 4th) 
 
Planning Committee 
Meeting #2: Solicit 
Feedback on Risk 
Assessment 
 


 
Draft Element B: 
Risk Assessment 


 
October 


2020 


 
-Develop Mitigation Goals 
-Develop and Launch Online Survey 
-Prioritize Mitigation Actions 
-Develop Action Plan 
 


 
-Planning Committee 
Meeting #3: Solicit input 
on Mitigation Actions 
 
-Public Workshop #1: 
Solicit Public Input on 
Risk Assessment & 
Mitigation Actions 
 


-Public Survey 
 
-List of Mitigation 
Strategies from 
Planning 
Committee 


 
November 


2020 
 


-Integrate Public Feedback   
-Public Review of Plan 


Public Workshop #2: 
Solicit Public Input on 
Draft Plan 
 


-Draft Element C: 
Mitigation 
Strategies 
 
-Complete Full 
Public 
Review Draft 


December 
2020 Cal OES Review  Cal OES Review 


Draft 


January 
2020 FEMA Review  FEMA Review 


Draft 


 
February 


2020 


 
SSWD Board Adoption SSWD Board Meeting Approved and 


Adopted LHMP 


 





		Item V-C-  Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update

		Meeting Date: September 3, 2020



		Item V-C.1 - UpdatedTimeline_SSWD_LHMP






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 3, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Guernewood Park Development Update
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive status report for Guernewood Park 
Development. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the August Board Meeting, the Board was notified that there was renewed activity 
on the Guernewood Park Development.  I was first notified of this activity by Cynthia 
Strecker from the Lower Russian River Municipal Adivisory Committee.    
 
Jack Bushgen and I met with Efren Carrillio, Kirkman Lok, and Jean Kapolchok via 
Zoom on August 7th about the status of the Guernewood Park development.  They 
seemed serious and gave us a tentative timeline for County approval by October, 
2020.  I let them know that they needed to submit updated plans to the District and 
that Coastland would need to revisit the hydraulic study and help the District 
determine any required upgrades to our system to allow us to supply water.  I have 
received and shared the development plans with Coastland Engineering.  Coastland 
will determine if the hydraulic study needs to be updated.  I didn’t get a firm 
commitment from the developer to reimburse the District for the engineering costs, 
so I will probably ask them to enter into an agreement to that effect.  The Board will 
be updated as this project moves forward. 
 
 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: September 3, 2020






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 3, 2020  
 
SUBJECT: Grant Opportunities Update
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report from the General Manager.  Update of 
the Grant Application. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $1,220,000 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Colleen Hanley with California Special District Association (CSDA) notified the 
District of a CARES Act Grant opportunity for infrastructure projects funding.  
I used Grants.Gov, the new one stop State portal to apply for this funding on 
August 17, 2020 for $1,220,000 for the construction phase of the FY 2020-
2021 Capital Project for ~5,600 linear feet of replacement 6” HDPE water 
main on Old River Rd and Woodland Drive.  The District would match this 
amount.  This project replaces old galavanized line of 2” and 6” diameter that 
has been unreliable, with many leaks and also replaces the last remaining 
lead goose necks in our Guerneville system.  I was contacted by Calvin 
Sandeen with the Sonoma County Economic Development Council to offer 
help with the application process.  We have also applied to the Community 
Development Commission for CDBG grant funding in the same amount for 
this project.  We also applied for $100,000 through State flood disaster 
mitigation grant funding for this project.  Hopefully one or more of these 
grant applications is successful. 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: September 3, 2020






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 3, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed District Tax Lien Policy
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Covid-19 Disaster has created a need to view many policies and procedures of 
the District differently.  At the August 6 Board meeting, the Board approved resolution 
19-21 that clarifies the District’s ability to lien property to collect delinquent bills.  
Also, the direction was given to the GM to bring back new policy language describing 
the District’s right to lien property taxes to collect delinquent billing.  I have consulted 
with our legal counsel to begin this process.  Unfortunately, the Walbridge fire 
evacuations and recovery has interrupted this process.  I will bring this new policy 
language forward to the Board at the October Board meeting.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: September 3, 2020






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 3, 2020  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE OFFER BY TOWERPOINT FOR 
CROWN CASTLE/AT&T MT. JACKSON CELL TOWER LEASE   
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Hear a presentation by staff on a possible offer from 


TowerPoint for the Crown Castle/AT&T Mt Jackson Cell Tower Lease and provide 
direction to staff.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Cash payment in lieu of annual lease amounts   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Over the past weeks, I had discussions with personnel associated with TowerPoint, a 
company that buys cell tower leases, for the purchase of the Crown Castle/AT&T Mt 
Jackson cell tower lease.  The Crown Castle/AT&T lease provides the District with 
approximately $96,000 per year in lease payments.  TowerPoint would pay the District 
a cash amount for the current lease and pay the District 50% of whatever additional 
lease payments they develop by adding new tenants.  In my discussions with 
TowerPoint, a proposed tentative offer of $1,440,000 for the purchase of this lease was 
made.  
 
TowerPoint generates revenue by acquiring attractive cell tower sites and adding 
tenants.  Cell tower leases are generally distinguished by being long term leases for the 
cell phone providers with relatively short (90 days or less) termination provisions.  
Thus, a cell tower lease may provide attractive revenue for a landowner, but as cell 
phone providers merge and technology changes, the need for cell tower leases change, 
and leases can be terminated.  As an example, Steve Mack was in negotiations with T-
Mobile for an additional lease at the Mt. Jackson site in 2011.  AT&T took over T-Mobile.  
If that lease had been executed, because of the T-Mobile acquisition, AT&T would likely 
have terminated one of the leases – most likely the more expensive one which would 
have been the current AT&T lease.  As technology in the cell phone business changes, 
the Mt. Jackson site may not be as attractive as it currently is – AT&T could terminate 
their lease at any time, and the District would have no income stream from the site.  
The TowerPoint approach is a hedge against that.  Also, because TowerPoint actively 
seeks out new tenants (and we don’t), a new income stream could be developed at the 
site.   
 







Offer by TowerPoint for Crown Castle Mt. Jackson Cell Tower Lease 2 
September 3, 2020 


 


On the negative side, I have no knowledge of TowerPoint other than through these 
discussions and a casual inspection of their website.  Also, the offer has a permanent 
easement for the site, which is problematic.  The tentative offer is based on revenue 
generated over 15 years.  However, the District has a newly negotiated 34-year lease 
with Crown Castle, who bought AT&Ts lease from AT&T (and all their leases nationally), 
with a 3% annual increase that generates steady monthly revenue.  This revenue would 
generate over $5,500,000 over the term of the lease. 
 
After discussions with our attorney, I feel this offer is far too low, given the potential 
revenue over the term.  I believe TowerPoint is looking for financially disadvantaged 
Agencies that have suffered financially due to the Pandemic.  
    





		Meeting Date: September 3, 2020






General Manager’s Report  Page 1 of 7 
September 3, 2020 
 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 3, 2020   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1.  Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2.  Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in June were 28,582 units (65.6 AF 


Guerneville cycle), and production was 79.6 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were 
lower, and production was lower (62.9 AF and 75.8 AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows 
sales, production and % difference for the combined systems; the water loss trend was the 
same this month (20.8%).  Looking at the data over the last ten years, water production has 
dropped approximately 29%, and sales have dropped 18%.  The water loss percentage was 
around 30% and now is in the 15-20% range.  Much of the production and water loss drop 
can be attributed to the capital projects funded by Redevelopment.  The sales drop is 
probably due to conservation; it's unlikely historic use levels will return soon.    


 
3.  Leaks:  In August, we had eight total leak repairs with 49 hours on them.  Three leaks 


were in Guerneville and one was in Monte Rio.  All leaks were in older lines.  That is less 
leaks and less person-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks and less person-
hours compared to August one year ago (7 and 58).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks 
separately with a total leak line as well.  For Calendar Year 2019, total leaks were 78, 
down from 105 from 2018.  Looking at the leaks chart over the last ten years, we've come 
down from around 300 leaks per year to under 80 - quite a difference and very noticeable 
in what the field crews are able to do - address ongoing issues with in-house projects 
instead of chasing leaks every day.     







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 7 
September 3, 2020 
 


   
4.  Guerneville Rainfall:  August rainfall was 0.01”, which is lower than the long-term 


average month and keeps the yearly total (18.68”) below the long-term annual average.  
Our driest year on record was 1977 and we had 15.21” total by the end of August.        


  
5.   In-House Construction Projects: There were no in-house construction projects in 


August. There were no toilet rebates. 
 


6.   Park Avenue Tank:  The Park Avenue Tank roof was replaced and the tank was leveled 
by staff.  They did a great job.  The tank liner was replaced by New World Manufacturing 
out of Cloverdale.  The tank was disinfected and put back into service. 


 
7.   Lower Russian River Community Advisory Group Governance Meeting:  There was 


a remote meeting of the LRRCAG scheduled for August 27th.  This meeting was postponed 
for a month due to the wildfires.  Dan Fein and/ or Steve Trippe will attend the November 
5th Sweetwater Board meeting to update the Board in more detail. 


 
8.   Lower Harrison Tank Update:  It has been determined that there is a need for a roof 


replacement and paint job on the tank in the next few years.  Coastland has not submitted 
the cost estimate at this time. 


 
9.   Staff Update:  Chris Hanley, Account Clerk retired on August 28, 2020 after seventeen 


years of exceptional service to the District.  Chris will be missed.  We have begun 
discussion of the timing of her replacement. 


 
10.   Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is updated for September, FY 2020.   


 
11.   Economic Impact of no Disconnects for Non-payment:  The total uncollected amount 


in this Guerneville billing cycle due to non-payment with the non Disconnect Executive 
Order is $2,464.32.  The chart is updated with separate columns for billing cycles.  We will 
continue to track this amount. 


 
12.   Unfunded Liability Update:  The District has received our annual valuation report 


from CalPERS, which among other information provides a breakdown of Unfunded 
Liability (UL).  At the beginning of FY 2019-20, the District’s UL was $986,313.  This 
includes $40,679 in UL added for investment shortfalls in FY 2018-19.  (CalPERS projects 
a 7% investment return, but in FY 2018-19 only achieved a 6.7% return.)  During the year, 
the District paid $554,360 towards UL.  This sum included a $500,000 payment made via 
loan from our Policy Reserves.  At the end of the year, after interest payments, the District’s 
UL is $481,922.  This does not include investment losses for FY 2019-20 (CalPERS has 
announced a 4.7% investment return for last year.)  The shortfall from the 7% projected 
return will be added to our UL in next year’s report.  







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 7 
September 3, 2020 
 


 
 


 


 
          


 
 


 
 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 7 
September 3, 2020 
 


 
 


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 5 of 7 
September 3, 2020 
 
 


 


 -


 10.00


 20.00


 30.00


 40.00


 50.00


 60.00


 70.00


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


(in
)


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall
Guerneville
Avg
Dryest (1977)


09-19 Avg


2017


2018


2019


2020


-







General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 7 
September 3, 2020 
 


 


Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 FY22+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
·        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
·        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
·        Ad Hoc Budget Committee 
Reviews Draft Budget
·        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
·        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
·        Update/Review District CIP
·        2021 CIP Planning


·        2021 CIP Design


   Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
·        LHMP Committee Meetings
·        LHMP Approval


   EPA Vulnerability Asessment
Urban Water Management Plan
Water Rights SCWA 
Emergency Response Plan Review
Urban Water Management Plan


·        UWMP Approval
Policies and Procedures


·        Other Policy
·        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone







General Manager’s Report  Page 7 of 7 
September 3, 2020 
 


 


 


Tracking the Economic Impact of Suspending Water Disconnects for  
Non-payment 


 


EVEN CYCLE ODD CYCLE 


Billing Date 


# of Customers 
whose prior bill was 


still unpaid when 
next bill mailed 


$ Value of Past 
Due Amounts** 
(including unpaid customer 


deposits) 


Billing 
Date 


# of Customers 
whose prior bill was 


still unpaid when 
next bill mailed 


$ Value of Past Due 
Amounts** 


(including unpaid customer 
deposits) 


2/15/2020 
(Historical 
disconnect 
procedure) 


0 $0 


3/15/2020 
(SB 998 


extends time 
before 


disconnect) 


10 $1,565 


4/15/2020 
(Exec. Order N-


42-20: 
Disconnects 
completely 
suspended) 


24 $4,096 5/15/2020 5 $594.02 


6/15/2020 9 $2,947.56 7/15/2020 8 $1,261.02 


8/15/2020 7 $2,464.32    


 
As of 8/15/2020, 16 customers have entered into COVID-19 Agreements.  These customers are not included in the numbers 
above. 





		Meeting Date: September 3, 2020



